UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
BEFORE THE NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD
REGION 32

UNITED FOOD AND COMMERCIAL WORKERS LOCAL
NO. 5, CHARTERED BY THE UNITED FOOD AND
COMMERCIAL WORKERS INTERNATIONAL UNION,
AFL-CIO.CLC (SAFEWAY STORES)

and Case 32-CB-219981

CHRISTOPHER RATANA-KELLEY, an
Individual

COUNSEL FOR THE GENERAL COUNSEL'’S OPPOSITION TO RESPONDENT’S
MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGEMENT

Pursuant to Rule 102.24(b) of the Board's Rules and Regulations, Series 8, as amended, the
Counsel for the General Counsel files this opposition to United Food and Commercial Workers
Local 5 (Respondent)’s Motion for Summary Judgment (“Motion”) which Respondent filed on
May 10, 2019 and Respondent’s Supplemental Memorandum in Support of the Motion for
Summary Judgment (“Supplemental Memorandum”) which Respondent filed on May 17, 2019.
Exhibit A and B, respectively. While Respondent’s argument in support of its Motion is that there
is no sound legal basis to allege a violation based on existing law, the Complaint includes an
allegation which is based on existing law and to which Respondent has placed material facts at
issue by denying allegations of the Complaint in its Answer.

The Complaint in this matter alleges that Respondent violated the Act by (1) failing to
provide Charging Party with a breakdown of its chargeable and non-chargeable expenditures after

the Charging Party requested to become a Beck objector, and (2) failing to provide, in its initial



Beck notice, the Charging Party with a good-faith determination of the amount of reduced fees and
dues for employees who decide not to become Union members. Exhibit C.

Summary judgment is warranted only if there is no genuine issue of material fact and the
movant is entitled to judgment as a matter of law. See, e.g., Security Walls, LLC, 361 NLRB 348
(2014); Mercedes-Benz U.S. International, Inc., 365 NLRB No. 67 (2017); Leukemia and
Lymphoma Society, 363 NLRB No. 124 (2016). Section 102.24(b) of the Board’s Rules and
Regulations provides that:

[t]he Board in its discretion may deny [a motion for summary judgment] where the

motion itself fails to establish the absence of a genuine issue, or where the opposing

_party’s plead_ings, opposition and/or response indicate on their face that a genuine

issue may exist.

It is the burden of the moving party to establish by admissible evidence that “there is no
genuine issue as to any material fact and that the moving party is entitled to judgment as a matter
of law.” Conoco Chemicals Co., 275 NLRB 39, 40 (1985) (citing Stephens College, 260 NLRB
1049, 1050 (1982)); see also Fed. R. Civ. P. 56(c) (relied upon by Stephens College, supra). In
summary judgment proceedings, the pleadings and evidence are viewed in the light most favorable
to the nonmoving party. Eldeco, Inc., 336 NLRB 899,900 (2001). Notably, the Board has held that
a denial of the complaint by way of an answer raises material issues of fact which would defeat a
motion for summary judgment. Southwest Louisiana Hospital d/b/a Lake Charles Memorial
Hospital, 240 NLRB 1330, 1331 n.4 (1979)(“a simple denial of unlawful conduct is sufficient to
raise a material question”).

Here, the Complaint allegation that that Respondent violated the Act by failing to provide
Charging Party with a breakdown of its chargeable and non-chargeable expenditures after the

Charging Party requested to become a Beck objector is supported by well-established Board

precedent. Indeed, the Board has repeatedly held that unions must provide Beck objectors with a



sufficiently verified breakdown of its chargeable and non-chargeable expenses. Am. Fed'n of
Television & Recording Artists, Portland Local, 327 NLRB 474, 477 (1999); Teamsters Local 579
(Chambers & Owen), 350 NLRB 1166 (2007); Teamsters Local 75 (Schreiber Foods), 365 NLRB
No. 48, slip op. (2017). Additionally, Respondent, through its Answer, has denied every non-
jurisdictional fact pled in the Complaint including: that it is the exclusive representative of the unit
described in the Complaint, that it and Safeway, Inc. (Employer) maintain and enforce a union
security clause, that Charging Party requested to become a Beck objector, and that it sent the
Charging Party communications described in the Complaint. (Cpt.{ 1 5, 6(a), 6(b) 6(c), 7(a), 7(b),
7(c), 7(d), 8(a), 8(b); Ans. § 7).! Exhibit D. By placing these material facts at issue through its
Answer, Respondent is not entitled to summary judgement.

Although current Board precedent does not support the Complaint allegation that
Respondent violated the Act by failing to provide, in its initial Beck notice, the Charging Party
with a good-faith determination of the amount of reduced fees and dues for employees who decide
not to become Union members , see (Kroger Limited Partnership), 361 NLRB 420 (2014) order
vacated by Sands v. NLRB, 825 F.3d 778 (D.C. Cir. 2016)(holding a union did not breach its duty
of fair representation when it did not provide specific amount of reduced fees and dues applicable
to nonmember objectors in its initial Beck notice), Counsel for the General Counsel is permitted
to argue Kroger should be overruled. See, e.g., Babcock & Wilcox Construction Co., Inc., 361
NLRB No. 132 (2014)(General counsel argued for a change in Board law regarding the deferral
standard). Accordingly, Counsel for the General Counsel must be afforded an opportunity to

develop a record to support its theories in this case.

! References to the Complaint: "Cpt. " References to Respondent’s Answer will be as follows:
"Ans. "



For the above reasons, summary judgment is not warranted and should be denied in its

entirety.?

DATED AT San Francisco, California this 21" day of May, 2019.

Respectfully Submitted,

/sl Tracy Clark

Tracy Clark

Counsel for the General Counsel
National Labor Relations Board
Region 20

901 Market Street, Suite 400

San Francisco, California 94103-1735

2 Metalcraft of Mayville Inc., 367 NLRB No. 116 (2019) and Didlake, Inc., 367 NLRB No. 125
(2019) cited in Respondent’s Motion and Supplemental Memorandum are not relevant to the
Complaint allegations. Indeed, neither case concerned, discussed, or even considered the extent
of a union’s obligation to inform employees of their rights under Beck and its progeny. Mayville
concerned a contract modification allegation and Didlake concerned an employer’s statements to
employees during an organizing campaign. These distinct allegations are ruled by distinct legal
standards that are inapplicable to the allegations of the Complaint. Accordingly, these cases do
not entitle Respondent to summary judgment as a matter of law.
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DAVID A. ROSENFELD, Bar No. 058163

WEINBERG, ROGER & ROSENFELD

A Professional Corporation

1001 Marina Village Parkway, Suite 200

Alameda, California 94501

Telephone (510) 337-1001

Fax (510) 337-1023

E-Mail: drosenfeld@unioncounsel.net
nlrbnotices@unioncounsel.net

Attorneys for the Union, UNITED FOOD AND
COMMERCIAL WORKERS LOCAL NO. 5
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD
REGION 32

UNITED FOOD COMMERCIAL WORKERS Case 32-CB-219981
LOCAL 5 (SAFEWAY STORES),

MOTION FOR SUMMARY

and JUDGMENT

CHRISTOPHER RATANA-KELLEY, an
Individual

The Respondent in the above-entitled matter hereby moves the Board for an Order
granting summary judgment.

This motion is based upon the Complaint and Notice of Hearing, a copy of which is
attached as Exhibit A and the First Amended Answer to the Complaint, a copy of which is
attached as Exhibit B.

In this case, the General Counsel seeks to establish a new principle, one which has been
previously rejected by the Board. The General Counsel seeks to impose a requirement that
Beck/General Motors notices contain a “good faith determination of the sum amount of reduced
fees and dues employees who decide not to become Union members, also known as Beck
objectors, must pay in order to comply with the union-security provision ...” See

paragraph 8(a).
EXHIBIT A



The General Counsel has made it clear that he seeks to establish a new principle, one
which has been rejected by the Board. See General Counsel Memorandum 19-04, dated
February 22, 2019, a copy of which is attached as Exhibit C.

The Board has recently made it clear that where a party acts in reliance upon established
law, a Complaint must be dismissed. See Metalcraft of Mayville Inc., 367 NLRB No. 116
(2019). In that case, the Board held that because the employer reasonably relied upon an
interpretation of law, the employer did not violate the Act in terminating dues deduction
authorizations.

Mayuville is stronger authority because in that case, the Court of Appeals eventually
rejected Metalcraft’s legal position. Nonetheless, the Board held that because “the Respondent
had a sound arguable basis for believing the authorizations did not conform to (the statute) ...”
its conduct was privileged. Id. at page 4.

In this circumstance, the General Counsel concedes that current Board law privileges the
conduct of the Respondent. There is no sound arguable basis to argue that the Union’s conduct
is prohibited.

Because the Board has now established the principle that conduct consistent with the law
at the time of the conduct cannot be the basis of an unfair labor practice finding, the Complaint
in this matter must be dismissed as they Complaint was dismissed in Metalcraft of Mayville Inc.,
supra.

For these reasons, summary judgment should be granted and the Complaint dismissed in

its entirety. The Charging Party should be required to pay Respondent’s attorney fees.

Dated: May 10, 2019 Respectfully Submitted,

WEINBERG, ROGER & ROSENFELD
A Professional Corporation

/s/ David A. Rosenfeld

By: DAVID A. ROSENFELD

Attorneys for the Union, UNITED FOOD AND
COMMERCIAL WORKERS LOCAL 5
145240\1025501
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DAVID A. ROSENFELD, Bar No. 058163

WEINBERG, ROGER & ROSENFELD

A Professional Corporation

1001 Marina Village Parkway, Suite 200

Alameda, California 94501

Telephone (510) 337-1001

Fax (510) 337-1023

E-Mail: drosenfeld@unioncounsel.net
nlrbnotices@unioncounsel.net

Attorneys for the Union, UNITED FOOD AND
COMMERCIAL WORKERS LOCAL NO. 5
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD
REGION 32

UNITED FOOD COMMERCIAL WORKERS Case 32-CB-219981
LOCAL 5 (SAFEWAY STORES),

and FIRST AMENDED ANSWER
TO COMPLAINT

CHISTOPHER RATANA-KELLEY, an
Individual




United Food and Commercial Workers Local 5, which is improperly named in the
Complaint and does not exist as named in the Complaint, hereby answers the Complaint and
Notice of Hearing as follows:

(1) As to paragraph 1, those allegations are denied on the ground that Christopher
Ratana-Kelley did not file the charge on its own but rather was compelled to do it by outside
forces.

(2)  Asto paragraph 2(a), Respondent denies this allegation on the ground that there
was no employer known as Safeway or “Store 211.” There is an entity known as Safeway, Inc.,
but Respondent does not have knowledge as to whether Safeway, Inc. is a California corporation
or it is organized under the laws of some other state. Respondent specifically denies that there is
any entity “Employer Store 211" and furthermore denies that “Employer Store 211, has been
operating a chain of retail grocery stores.” Safeway, Inc. has been operating a chain of stores
which sells more than just groceries for example it sells gas. People do not eat gas.

3 As to paragraph 2(b), because paragraph 2(a) is unclear as to whether the
employer is Safeway, Safeway, Inc. or “Employer Store 211,” Respondent denies the allegations
of 2(b). Respondent does admit that Safeway, Inc. in conducting all its operations derives gross
revenue in excess of $500,000. Respondent denies that Safeway, Inc. has “derived gross
revenues in excess of $500,000” since the plural is not the correct word.

4 As to paragraph 2(c), because the above allegation isn’t clear as to who the
employer is, Respondent denies the allegations of paragraph 2(c). Respondent does admit that
Safeway, Inc. has “purchased and received products, goods, and services valued in excess of
$5,000 which originated from points located outside of the State of California” including China.

%) As to paragraph 3, this allegation is denied on the ground that the current Labor
Board is likely to arbitrarily change the definition of employer, engage on commerce, and
“within the meaning of Section 2(2)(6) and (7) of the Act.” Furthermore, because the allegations
of who the employer is is unclear, Respondent cannot respond further. Respondent does admit

that Safeway, Inc. does employ employees within the meaning of those Sections of the Act.



(6) As to paragraph 4, that allegation is denied. The caption suggests that the
Respondent is “United Food Commercial Workers, Local 5 (Safeway Store).” There is no such
labor organization with that name. The first paragraph alleges that there is a labor organization
known as “United Food and Commercial Workers, UFCW Local 5.” The proper name is United
Food and Commercial Workers Local No. 5, chartered by the United Food and Commercial
Workers International Union, AFL-CIO.CLC. As to paragraph 4, Respondent admits that if
properly named, it is currently a labor organization within the meaning of the Act. Respondent,
however, denies the ultimate conclusion because the current Board is likely to change the
definition of labor organization within the meaning of the Act because of the radical changes it
has made to the Act.

@) With respect to the allegations of paragraph 5, these are denied.

With respect to the allegations of Paragraphs 6, 7, 8, 9 and 10, these allegations are denied.

Respondent does not concede that it has the burden of proof on any of these Affirmative
Defenses:

FIRST AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

The Complaint is barred by Section 10(b).
SECOND AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

The Complaint is barred because the Charging Party was unlawfully, illegally and
improperly coerced into filing the charge. The Charging Party did not make a free choice to file
the charge.

THIRD AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

The Charge is barred by the doctrine of waiver, laches and estoppel.

FOURTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

The Complaint and the remedy sought are barred by the First Amendment of the United

States Constitution.



FIFTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

The Complaint and the remedy sought are barred by the Thirteenth Amendment of the
United States Constitution.

SIXTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

The Complaint and the remedy sought are barred by the Fourteenth Amendment and the
Fifth Amendment of the United States Constitution.

SEVENTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

The Complaint and the remedy sought are barred by the Religious Freedom Restoration
Act.
EIGHTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

The Complaint and the remedy sought are forced and compelled speech which is barred
by the First Amendment of the United States Constitution.
NINTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

The Complaint should be barred since the current General Counsel of the National Labor
Relations Board should not participate in this matter and should be recusing himself.

TENTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

The Complaint should be barred since the Regional Director of Region 32 should have
recused herself.

ELEVENTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

The Complaint should be barred because the national right to work legal defense
foundation inc., of which Aaron Solem is an attorney, is an employer dominated and assisted
labor organization which is sponsored and controlled by employers for the purpose of busting
Unions. Itis an alter ego, joint employer and agent with the national right to work committee. It
is also a racketeering enterprise because its operations violate 29 U.S.C. § 186 which is a

predicate offense for a RICO action.



TWELFTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

The national right to work legal defense foundation inc. does not represent Christopher
Ratana- Kelley.
THIRTEENTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

The current National Labor Relations Board is improperly and illegally constituted.

FOURTEENTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

Any Administrative Law Judge assigned to this matter was improperly appointed.

FIFTEENTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

Members Ring, Emmanuel and Kaplan should recuse themselves.

SIXTEENTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

The Complaint is barred by the California Constitution.

SEVENTEENTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

The Complaint and the procedure of the National Labor Relations Board violate the
Administrative Procedures Act and due process.

EIGHTEENTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

The Complaint and the remedy sought violate international labor law rights and treaties
with other countries and sovereign nations.

NINETEENTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

The Complaint and the remedy violate Freedom of Association and Protection of the
Right to Organize Convention, 1948 (No. 87) of the ILO and the Right to Organize and
Collective Bargaining Convention, 1949 (No. 98) and various other International Conventions,
International Instruments. A copy of the relevant provisions is attached as Exhibit A.

TWENTIETH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

Charging Party has failed to exhaust all available remedies such as the grievance

procedure and the internal union procedure.



TWENTY-FIRST AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

The NLRB uses FedEx a notorious violator of the Act and other laws designed to protect
workers. The Board and anyone representing charging party should be barred from using FedEx.

TWENTY-SECOND AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

Safeway Inc and other employers support the national right to work legal defense
foundation and it is an improperly employer supported and dominated organization. As such it
should be barred from these proceedings.

WHEREFORE, the Complaint should be dismissed, the Respondent should be awarded
its attorney’s fees and appropriate sanctions should issue against Aaron Solem and the national
right to work legal defense foundation inc. and others involved in this matter including the
National Labor Relations Board. The matter should be referred to a special counsel engaged to

investigate the abusive process involved in this matter.

Dated: April 29, 2019 Respectfully Submitted,

WEINBERG, ROGER & ROSENFELD
A Professional Corporation

/s/ David A. Rosenfeld

By: DAVID A. ROSENFELD

Attorneys for the Union, UNITED FOOD AND
COMMERCIAL WORKERS LOCAL 5

145240\1023333
















































































































































































































































































































































PROOF OF SERVICE

I am a citizen of the United States and resident of the State of California. 1 am employed
in the County of Alameda, State of California, in the office of a member of the bar of this Court,
at whose direction this service was made. | am over the age of eighteen years and not a party to
the within action.

On April 29, 2019, | served the following documents in the manner described below:

FIRST AMENDED ANSWER TO COMPLAINT

M (BY ELECTRONIC SERVICE: By electronically mailing a true and correct copy
through Weinberg, Roger & Rosenfeld’s electronic mail system from
kkempler@unioncounsel.net to the email addresses set forth below.

On the following part(ies) in this action:

Aaron B. Solem Stephen M. Sloper

8001 Braddock Road, Suite 600 National Labor Relations Board, Region 32
Springfield, VA 22160 Field Examiner

abs@nrtw.org 1301 Clay Street, Suite 300N

Oakland, CA 94612-5224
stephen.sloper@nlrb.gov

Christy J. Kwon

Regional Attorney

National Labor Relations Board, Region 32
1301 Clay Street, Suite 300N
Christy.kwon@nlrb.gov

M (BY U.S. MAIL) I am personally and readily familiar with the business practice of
Weinberg, Roger & Rosenfeld for collection and processing of correspondence for
mailing with the United States Postal Service, and I caused such envelope(s) with
postage thereon fully prepaid to be placed in the United States Postal Service at
Alameda, California.

On the following part(ies) in this action:
Christopher Ratana-Kelley

1601 Colchester Street
Danville, CA 94506

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the United States of America that the

foregoing is true and correct. Executed on April 29, 2019, at Alameda, California.

/s/ Karen Kempler
Karen Kempler



mailto:kkempler@unioncounsel.net
mailto:abs@nrtw.org
mailto:stephen.sloper@nlrb.gov
mailto:Christy.kwon@nlrb.gov
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OFFICE OF THE GENERAL COUNSEL
MEMORANDUM GC 19-04 February 22, 2019

TO: All Regional Directors, Officers-in-Charge,
and Resident Officers

FROM: Peter B. Robb, General Counsel

SUBJECT:  Unions’ Duty to Properly Notify Employees of Their General Motors/Beck Rights
and to Accept Dues Checkoff Revocations after Contract Expiration

Certain issues regarding employees’ statutory rights involving compulsory union dues
deductions and dues checkoff authorizations have been presented to the General Counsel for
guidance. These issues involve failures (1) to provide adequate information to employees in
order for them to make informed decisions as to whether to become a union member or a core
dues member and (2) to provide legal and clear requirements for dues checkoff revocation. As a
result, to ensure the protection of employees’ statutory rights in these areas, the following
information is provided.

Employees subject to compulsory dues payment under the Act have rights to be
informed of their ability to be less than full union members, object to paying for union activities
not germane to unions’ representational duties, to revoke dues checkoff authorizations at certain
times; and to receive the information necessary to make those choices. Consequently, the Board
and courts have required unions to take certain actions. To assist Regions with processing
charges alleging unions’ violations of those duties, this memorandum details policy positions
concerning unions’ duties to: (1) properly notify represented employees, at the time of the first
dues collection attempt, of their General Motors right to be non-members and Beck right to be
objectors, including by providing employees with the reduced amount of dues and fees in the

initial Beck notice so that an employee can make an informed decision as to whether to become a



Beck objector; and (2) clearly and unambiguously notify employees of the specific anniversary
and/or contract expiration dates on which employees may timely revoke their dues authorization
checkoffs and honor employees’ requests to revoke dues checkoff authorizations annually and
upon cessation of the governing collective-bargaining agreement.

l. A Union’s Obligation to Properly Notify Represented
Employees of their General Motors/Beck Rights

The Supreme Court held in General Motors® and Beck,? respectively, that employees
subject to a union-security clause have the right to be non-members, and that a union has a
corresponding duty of fair representation that extends to not spending an objecting non-
member’s dues and fees on non-representational activities. When a union initially seeks to
collect dues and fees under a union-security clause, it must first inform employees of their right
to be or remain non-members.® It must also inform them of their Beck rights, namely, that non-
members have the rights to: (1) object to paying for union activities not germane to the union’s
representational duties and to obtain a reduction in fees for such activities; (2) be given sufficient
information to intelligently decide whether to object; and (3) be apprised of any internal union
procedures for filing objections.* These notices must be provided to an employee concurrently
with the union’s first attempt to collect dues from the employee and not, for instance, in a

periodic publication.® Additionally, a union’s separate obligation to provide an annual notice to

1 NLRB v. Gen. Motors Corp., 373 U.S. 734 (1963).
2 CWA v. Beck, 487 U.S. 735 (1988).

3 NLRB v. Gen. Motors Corp., 373 U.S. at 743; California Saw & Knife Works, 320 NLRB 224,
233, 235 & n.57 (1995), enforced, 133 F.3d 1012 (7th Cir. 1998).

4 California Saw, 320 NLRB at 233.

51d. at 235 & n. 57.



represented employees of their General Motors/Beck rights must be reasonably prominent and
not “hidden in a lengthy publication.”® Under current law, the union need only apprise

employees of the percentage of the Beck reduction if they decide to become Beck objectors.’

In the General Counsel’s view, it is difficult for an employee to make an informed
decision about whether to become a Beck objector without first knowing the amount of savings
that would result from that decision.® The General Counsel agrees with the D.C. Circuit that an
initial Beck notice must apprise potential objectors of the percentage of union dues chargeable to
them in order for potential objectors to gauge the propriety of a union’s fee.® In Penrod, the D.C.

Circuit found the question of initial Beck requirements to be “squarely controlled by” the

®1d. at 234 (annual Beck notice posted in union’s newsletter gave employees sufficient notice
where it appeared in color, apart from other text, and under the bolded word, “Notice”).

71d. at 233; Food & Commercial Workers Local 700 (Kroger Limited Partnership), 361 NLRB
420 (2014) (adhering to the precedent in California Saw & Kbnife regarding the requirements for
initial Beck notices), order vacated by Sands v. NLRB, 825 F.3d 778 (D.C. Cir. 2016). Unions
must also provide Beck objectors with the basis for the calculation and inform them of their right
to challenge the calculation.

8 See e.g., Penrod v. NLRB, 203 F.3d 41, 47 (D.C. Cir. 2000) (potential objectors must be told
the percentage of dues chargeable to them, “for how else could they ‘gauge the propriety of the
union’s fee,”” citing Chicago Teacher’s Union, Local No. 1 v. Hudson, 475 U.S. 292, 306
(1986)); Kroger, 361 NLRB at 426 (acknowledging that information about the precise reduction
in dues and fees may be motivating certain employees’ decisions about whether to become Beck
objectors) and at 429 & n.5 (Members Miscimarra and Johnson, concurring in part and
dissenting in part) (noting that employees need information directly relevant to the exercise of
their rights and that the percentage of nonrepresentational expenses may affect an employee’s
decision to object). Cf. Teamsters Local 579 (Chambers & Owen Inc.), 350 NLRB 1166, 1168
(2007) (employees must be given the breakdown by major category of chargeable versus
nonchargeable expenditures and a description of how the allocations were calculated before they
challenge the calculations so that they can determine whether to file a challenge).

% See, e.g., Penrod, 203 F.3d at 47 (new employees and financial core payors must be informed
of dues percentage that would be chargeable if they objected).

-3-



Supreme Court’s decision in Chicago Teacher’s Union, Local No. 1 v. Hudson, 475 U.S. 292
(1986), where the Court said, in a case dealing with public sector employees, that “[b]asic
considerations of fairness...dictate that the potential objectors be given sufficient information to
gauge the propriety of the union’s fee.”*° In Kroger, the Board considered Penrod and
acknowledged that “basic considerations of fairness” inform a union’s duty of fair representation
in providing sufficient Beck notice to employees, ! but nevertheless declined to follow the D.C.
Circuit in requiring the additional information at the initial notice stage, finding that such a
requirement was neither compelled by the earlier cases nor comprehended within the majority’s

view of a union’s duty of fair representation.*?

It is the General Counsel’s position that the analysis applied by the Board majority in
Kroger was flawed, and failed to give appropriate weight to employees’ Section 7 rights and
related interests. One of the core purposes of the Act is to protect the right of employees to
choose whether they will become or remain members of a labor organization. In this respect
General Motors rights and Beck rights are inextricably intertwined, Weyerhaeuser Paper Co.,
320 NLRB 349, 350 (1995), rev’d on other grounds, sub nom. Buzenius v. NLRB, 124 F.3d 788

(6™ Cir. 1997), vacated, 525 U.S. 979 (1998). Because under General Motors an initial

104, at 47.

11 See Chambers & Owen Inc., 350 NLRB at 1170 (“we believe that the concept of “fairness’ fits
comfortably within the duty of fair representation”); Kroger, 361 NLRB at 423-24 (stating that
the “fairness” rationale of Hudson is not irrelevant to the Board’s balancing the competing
interests at stake in considering the union’s initial notice obligations under the duty of fair
representation).

12 See Kroger, 361 NLRB at 422 (holding that a union does not need to inform employees in the

initial Beck notice of the specific details of the reduced fees and dues for objectors, despite
acknowledgement of the D.C. Circuit’s holding otherwise).

-4-



discussion of membership, initiation fees (where applicable) and periodic fees falls squarely
within a union’s existing fiduciary obligation, it is appropriate that Beck adjustments also be
made known at the same time, before an employee is effectively required by law to make a
membership decision, as the reduction in periodic payments may be determinative of the

employee’s choice in that regard.

For these reasons, the Board should overrule Kroger and require that a union must provide the
reduced amount of dues and fees for objectors in the initial Beck notice so that an employee can
make an informed decision as to whether to become a Beck objector. It is obvious that employees
will be better able to make informed decisions about whether to become Beck objectors if they
know the amount of savings that will result from that decision. It should not be burdensome for
unions to provide that figure. In many cases, the union will have that amount easily at hand,
because there is a Beck system in place and there are other objectors for whom the appropriate
fee has been determined. If the union does not yet have the exact fee calculated (because it has,
as yet, no objectors), it can make a good faith determination as to what the amount will be. This
good faith determination need not be based on precise calculations or an independent auditor’s
report, but the union must have utilized a reasoned analysis to determine the figure and the union
must explain to the employee how it derived the figure should the employee ask. Naturally the
estimates must be reasonable. Employees do not need a precise or audited figure to make an
informed decision about whether to object -- requiring such detail would be an expensive and

time-consuming undertaking for a union that has not yet done it.*

13 See e.g., Kroger, 361 NLRB at 427 (describing the burden to unions in creating the
calculations, especially for unions who have not previously had Beck objectors).

-5-



1. Employees’ Right to Revoke Dues Authorization
Annually and at Contract Expiration

Section 302(c)(4) of the Labor Management Relations Act (LMRA) permits dues-
checkoff arrangements for employees only if employees have the opportunity to revoke their
authorizations: (1) at least once per year, and (2) upon expiration of the applicable collective-
bargaining agreement. Section 302 of the LMRA was devised as an anti-corruption measure to
prohibit the direct payment of moneys from an employer to a union except in limited
circumstances.* Section 302(c)(4) was added to ensure that dues-checkoff arrangements are
made with valid employee consent, and that employees be given the right, at least annually, to
revoke that consent.®

The language of Section 302(c)(4) of the LMRA thus creates an unconditional statutory
right for employees to revoke their dues-checkoff authorizations upon cessation of the governing
collective-bargaining agreement, whether by expiration or termination.® The legislative history

of Section 302(c)(4) suggests a congressional intent fully consistent with that interpretation.’

14 See Lockheed Space Operations Company, Inc., 302 NLRB 322, 325-27 (1991).
.

16 See Frito-Lay, Inc., 243 NLRB 137, 139-41 (1979) (Member Murphy, dissenting) (arguing
that contractual window periods for cancelling dues checkoff authorizations do not negate
Section 302(c)(4)’s statutory guarantee that an employee may cancel his or her checkoff
authorization upon the expiration of the relevant collective-bargaining agreement); Stewart v.
NLRB, 851 F.3d 21, 32-35 (D.C. Cir. 2017) (J. Silberman, concurring/dissenting) (noting that
“[t]he difference between a right to revoke during a limited pre-termination window and a right
to revoke at will upon termination of an agreement is not an insignificant difference. .
...Employees might well decide to revoke their authorizations . . . only after termination of an
applicable agreement because of the then-existing unsatisfactory status of relations between the
union and employer”).

17 See Lockheed Space Operations, 302 NLRB at 325-27.
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Accordingly, any dues-checkoff authorization that restricts the statutory right of
employees to revoke their authorizations at expiration of a current contract or during a period in
which no contract is in effect is improper and unlawful.

A. Dues-Checkoff Revocation Window Periods

A dues-checkoff authorization’s pre-expiration window period that requires an
employee seeking revocation to submit their revocation request 60-75 days before contract
expiration is inconsistent with, and restricts, the right of an employee to seek and effectuate
revocation immediately upon contract expiration. A clause containing the window requirement is
therefore unlawful under Section 302(c)(4) of the LMRA. In the General Counsel’s view,
because such windows may operate to eliminate or cut short the employee’s statutory right to
revoke at contract expiration, they are facially invalid under the NLRA. The Board should
therefore overrule Frito-Lay, 243 NLRB 137 (1979) inasmuch as it broadly permits pre-
expiration revocation windows to supplant the statutorily-guaranteed revocation opportunity at a
collective-bargaining agreement’s expiration.

Window periods associated with an employee’s anniversary date on which he/she signed
the dues authorization are not in conflict with Section 302(c)(4) of the LMRA and the Board
should continue to permit them.

Applying the foregoing analysis, Regions are directed to issue complaint where a dues-
checkoff authorization purports to limit an employee’s right to revoke that authorization at
cessation of the contract term by imposing an earlier revocation window period. It is the General
Counsel’s position that an employer that continues to check off an employee’s dues following
receipt of the employee’s written revocation request made at or following expiration of a

governing contract, as well as a union that receives such dues, does so without employee



authorization in violation of Section 8(b)(1)(A) and 8(a)(3).*® In addition, because an employee
may reasonably rely on an authorization’s otherwise unlawful language to request revocation

during the window, he or she must be permitted to revoke during that earlier period as well.

B. Dues Checkoff Authorization Revocation Requirements

Some check off authorization revocation procedures impose additional requirements
that result in impediments to the revocation process. Thus, a certified mail requirement, or a
requirement that the union must sign for the certified mail for the request to be valid, create
unnecessary impediments and restrain employees in their rights to revoke dues check-off
authorizations. To certify mail a document, an employee must go to a post office or facility to
fill out a form, pay money to mail it, etc. Employees may face language barriers, transportation
issues and the absence of available facilities. An employee may also interpret language about a
union needing “to receive and sign for” the notice to also suggest the union can reject the
revocation letter by merely refusing to sign for it. Therefore, the General Counsel believes
that a certified mail requirement unlawfully restrains and coerces employees in their rights to

revoke dues checkoff authorizations.

C. Dues Checkoff Authorization Language

Section 302(c)(4) of the LMRA makes clear that the congressional policy protecting an

employee’s right to refrain from financially assisting a union includes the right of an employee,

18 Revocation restrictions that violate Section 302(c)(4) of the LMRA also violate Section
8(b)(1)(A) of the Act. See Atlanta Printing Specialties, 215 NLRB 237, 237 (1974), enforced
523 F.2d 783 (5th Cir. 1975); Stewart v. NLRB, 851 F.3d at 24 (citing Lockheed, 302 NLRB at
325 n.8; WKYC-TV, Inc., 359 NLRB 286, 289 n.13 (2012)).
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at least annually, to revoke his/her dues-checkoff authorization. To exercise that right, it is
critical that the employee clearly understands the exact date or dates when revocation requests
can be submitted. In this regard, plain language to describe when revocation requests can be
made is strongly encouraged so that employees understand the clear parameters around
revocation. Even where a union lawfully asserts that a request to revoke is untimely, the
employee often is not told when the open period for revocation occurs. This has led to employees
filing multiple untimely revocation requests that are summarily denied. To remedy this situation,
the General Counsel believes that the union must either inform the employee of the specific next
period where revocation can be effectuated or inform the employee that the request will be
honored at the next available revocation period and that failure to do so violates a union’s duty of
fair representation. Thus, Regions should find that a failure to do so should be considered a
breach of the union’s duty of fair representation, in violation of Section 8(b)(1)(A) of the Act.
This is a minimal burden on the union, which has to determine the correct window period to
deny the revocation request, will help avoid disputes over whether the revocation dates were
clearly known to the employee and will be of great benefit to employees.

Any questions regarding the implementation of this memorandum should be directed to

your AGC/DAGC in Operations.

P.B.R.



PROOF OF SERVICE

I am a citizen of the United States and resident of the State of California. 1 am employed
in the County of Alameda, State of California, in the office of a member of the bar of this Court,
at whose direction this service was made. | am over the age of eighteen years and not a party to
the within action.

On May 10, 2019, I served the following documents in the manner described below:

MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT

M (BY ELECTRONIC SERVICE: By electronically mailing a true and correct copy
through Weinberg, Roger & Rosenfeld’s electronic mail system from
kkempler@unioncounsel.net to the email addresses set forth below.

On the following part(ies) in this action:

Aaron B. Solem Stephen M. Sloper

8001 Braddock Road, Suite 600 National Labor Relations Board, Region 32
Springfield, VA 22160 Field Examiner

abs@nrtw.org 1301 Clay Street, Suite 300N

Oakland, CA 94612-5224
stephen.sloper@nlrb.gov

Christy J. Kwon

Regional Attorney

National Labor Relations Board, Region 32
1301 Clay Street, Suite 300N
Christy.kwon@nlrb.gov

M (BY U.S. MAIL) I am personally and readily familiar with the business practice of
Weinberg, Roger & Rosenfeld for collection and processing of correspondence for
mailing with the United States Postal Service, and I caused such envelope(s) with
postage thereon fully prepaid to be placed in the United States Postal Service at
Alameda, California.

On the following part(ies) in this action:
Christopher Ratana-Kelley

1601 Colchester Street
Danville, CA 94506

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the United States of America that the

foregoing is true and correct. Executed on May 10, 2019, at Alameda, California.

/s/ Karen Kempler
Karen Kempler
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DAVID A. ROSENFELD, Bar No. 058163

WEINBERG, ROGER & ROSENFELD

A Professional Corporation

1001 Marina Village Parkway, Suite 200

Alameda, California 94501

Telephone (510) 337-1001

Fax (510) 337-1023

E-Mail: drosenfeld@unioncounsel.net
nlrbnotices@unioncounsel.net

Attorneys for the Union, UNITED FOOD AND
COMMERCIAL WORKERS LOCAL NO. 5

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD REGION 32

UNITED FOOD COMMERCIAL WORKERS Case 32-CB-219981
LOCAL 5 (SAFEWAY STORES),

SUPPLEMENTAL MEMORANDUM
IN SUPPORT OF MOTION FOR
SUMMARY JUDGMENT

and

CHRISTOPHER RATANA-KELLEY, an
Individual

On May 10, the Board ruled in Didlake, Inc., 367 NLRB No. 125 (2019) that statements
made by an employer which were contrary to established law could not serve as objectionable
conduct. In that case, the employer made misstatements of the law concerning union security
issues which would affect the job rights of the employees. Nonetheless, the Board majority
(Member McFerran vigorously dissenting) found that such statements were “not coercive ...”
Slip. Op. at page 1. The Board sanctioned employer sabotage of Section 7 rights to an uncoerced
atmosphere in which to vote in an NLRB supervised election. The Board stated that “it has
never found statements similar to those at issue here — i.e., that employees would have to join the
union and that they would not be able to work if they were no longer part of the union — to rise to

the level of a threat.” Slip Op. page 3.

EXHIBIT B



If the current Board majority finds that statements made which were inconsistent with
current Board law concerning union security are permitted, then the alleged failure of the Union
in this case to fully explain claimed rights with respect to union security is inconsistent. On one
hand, the Board can’t find that misstatements of law are permitted, while on the other hand in
this case, assert that the failure to provide additional information where the prior statements were
wholly lawful and consistent with current law, violate the Act. These rulings are inconsistent.

They are inconsistent with Section 8(c) and the First Amendment.

For these reasons and the reasons expressed in the Motion for Summary Judgment, the
Motion for Summary Judgment should be granted. The Union is under no obligation to provide
more information if the Board holds that employers may make deliberate misstatements of the

law that threatened employees with job loss.

Dated: May 17, 2019 Respectfully Submitted,

WEINBERG, ROGER & ROSENFELD
A Professional Corporation

/s/ David A. Rosenfeld

By: DAVID A. ROSENFELD

Attorneys for the Union, UNITED FOOD AND

COMMERCIAL WORKERS LOCAL 5
145240\1026181
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I am a citizen of the United States and resident of the State of California. 1 am employed
in the County of Alameda, State of California, in the office of a member of the bar of this Court,
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the within action.

On May 17, 2019, I served the following documents in the manner described below:

SUPPLEMENTAL MEMORANDUM IN SUPPORT OF MOTION FOR SUMMARY
JUDGMENT

M (BY ELECTRONIC SERVICE: By electronically mailing a true and correct copy
through Weinberg, Roger & Rosenfeld’s electronic mail system from
kkempler@unioncounsel.net to the email addresses set forth below.

On the following part(ies) in this action:

Aaron B. Solem Stephen M. Sloper

8001 Braddock Road, Suite 600 National Labor Relations Board, Region 32
Springfield, VA 22160 Field Examiner

abs@nrtw.org 1301 Clay Street, Suite 300N

Oakland, CA 94612-5224
stephen.sloper@nlrb.gov

Christy J. Kwon

Regional Attorney

National Labor Relations Board, Region 32
1301 Clay Street, Suite 300N
Christy.kwon@nlrb.gov

%} (BY U.S. MAIL) I am personally and readily familiar with the business practice of
Weinberg, Roger & Rosenfeld for collection and processing of correspondence for
mailing with the United States Postal Service, and I caused such envelope(s) with
postage thereon fully prepaid to be placed in the United States Postal Service at
Alameda, California.

On the following part(ies) in this action:
Christopher Ratana-Kelley

1601 Colchester Street
Danville, CA 94506

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the United States of America that the

foregoing is true and correct. Executed on May 17, 2019, at Alameda, California.

/s/ Karen Kempler
Karen Kempler
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UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
BEFORE THE NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD
REGION 32

-

UNITED FOOD COMMERCIAL WORKERS,
LOCAL 5 (SAFEWAY STORE)

and Case 32-CB-219981
CHRISTOPHER RATANA-KELLEY, an Individual

COMPLAINT AND NOTICE OF HEARING

This Complaint and Notice of Hearing is based on a charge filed by Christopher Ratana-
— ‘Kelley, an Individual (Charging Party). Itis issued pursuant to Section 10(b) of the _National Labor
Relations Act (the Act), 29 U.S.C. § 151 et seq., and Section 102.15 of the Rules and Regulations
of the National Labor Relations Board (the Board) and alleges that United Food and Commercial
Workers, UFCW Local 5 (Respondent) has violated the Act as described below.

1.

The charge in this proceeding was filed by the Charging Party on May 8, 20 18, and'a‘copy '

was served on Respondent by U.S. mail on May 10, 2018.

2.

(a) At all material times, Safeway, (_the Employer), a California corporation, with a

—_ __place-of business located at-3496 -Camino-Tassajara, Danville,-California, herein-called- Employer

Store 1211, has been operating a chain of retail grocery stores.
() During the twelve-month period ending May 31, 2018, the Er;}ployer, in-conducting

its business operations-described in paragraph 2(a), derived gross revenues in excess .of $500,000.

EXHIBIT C




(¢)  During the period described above in subparagraph 2(b), the -Employer, in
conducting_-_its operations described above in subparagraph 2(a), purchased and received-products;
goods, and services valued in excess of $5,000 which originated from points located outside the
State of California.

3.

(a) At all material times, the Employer has been an employer engage& in commerce

within the meaning of Section 2(2), (6), and (7) of the Act.
4.

(a)  Atall material times, Respondent has been a labor organization within the meaning
of Section 2(5) of the Act.

5. .

(a)  Atall material times, the following individuals held the positions set forth opposite

their respective names and have been agents of Respondent within the meaning of Section 2(13)

of the Act:
John Nunes - Union President
Jamie Moore - Union Representative
Jack Landes -. Union Secretary-Treasurer
6.

(a) At all material times since November 8, 2017, Respondent has been the exclusive

collective-bargaining representative of the following employees of the Employer (fhe -Unit)
pursuant to Section 9(a) of the Act:
All employees working in the Employer’s retail food stores within

the geographical jurisdiction of the Union; excluding supervisors
within the meaning of the National Labor Relations Act.




(b) At all material times and since at least November 8, 2017, Respondent and the
Employer have maintained and enforced a collective-bargaining agreement covering the terms and
conditions of employment of the Unit, including the following provision (union-security

_provision):

On and after thirty (30) days of employment, or the date of execution of this
Agreement, whichever is later, each employee shall become and remain a
member of the Union as a condition of employment; provided, however, that
the Employer shall not be obligated to discharge any ‘employee in violation
of the National Labor Relations Act, as amended. Upon written notification
from the Union that an employee has failed to make timely tender to the
“Union of initiation fees and/or periodic dues, the Employer agrees to
terminate said employee on the eighth (8th) day from such notice unless the
Union notifies the Employer in writing that the employee has complied with
the provisions hereof.

(©) Respondent expends the monies collected pursuant to the“union-security provision
described above in subparagraph 6(b) on activities germane to collective bargaining, contract
administration, and grievance adjustment, herein called representational activities, and on
activities not germane to collective bargaining, contract administration, and grievance adjustment,
herein called nonrepresentational activities.

7.

(a) At all material times since January 28, 2018, the Charging Party, a Unit employee

covered by the union-security provision described above in paragraph 6(b), has not been a member

of Respondent.

-(b)———On February-20;2018;Respondent informed the-Charging ’Paft'y; in writing; that he

had the right to refrain from union membership and to pay an initiation fee and regular monthly
dues that is slightly less than the full initiation fee and regular monthly dues as a condition of
employment, and an explanation of how to become a non-member and object to paying for

Respondent’s non-representational activities.




(c) On March 28, 2018, Respondent, by letter, notified the Charging Party that he
‘would be subject to discharge if he did not comply with the union-security provision described
above in paragraph 6(b) by paying membership dues and inifiat'ion fees.

(d)  On April 10,2018, the Charging Party, by letter, notified Respondent that he was
requesting to become a Beck-objector and requested information regarding the reduced amount of
fees he would be required to pay under the union-security provision described above in paragraph
6(d).

8.

(a) Since February 20’. 2018 through September 27,2018, Respondent failed to provide
the Charging Party a good faith determination of the sum amount of reduced fees and dues
employees who decide not to become Union members, also known as Beck objectors, must pay in.
order to comply with the union-security provision described above in paragraph 6(b).

(b) Since April 11, 2018 through September 27, 2018, Respondent failed to prov?de

'the Charging Party with a breakdown of -chargeable and non-chargeable expenditures for

Respondent’s local expenditures.

By the conduct .described above in paragraph 8, Respondent has been restraining and
coercing employees in the exercise of the rights guaranteed in Section 7 of the Act in violation of

Section-8(b)(1)(A).

10.

The unfair labor practices of Respondents described above affect commerce within the

meaning of Section 2(6) and (7) of the Act.



ANSWER REQUIREMENT

Respondent is notified that, pursuant to Sections 102.20 and 102.21 of the Board’s Rules

and Regulations, it must: file an answer to the Complaint. The answer must be received by this

office on _or before April 8, 2019, or postmarked on or before April 7, 2019. Respondent’

should file an original and four copies of the Answer with this office and serve a copy. of the
Answer on each of the other parties.
An answer may also be filed electronically through the Agency’s website. To file

electronically, go to www.nlrb.gov, click on E-File Documents, enter the NLRB Case Number,

and follow the detailed instructions. The responsibili.ty for the receipt and usability of the answer-
rests exclusively upon the sender. Unless notification on the Agency’s website informs users that
the Agency’s E-Filing system is officially determined to be in technical failure because it is unable
to receive documents for a continuous period.of more than 2 hours after 1 2:00 noon (Eastern Time)
on the due date for filing, a failure to timely file the answer will not be excused on the ‘basis that
the ‘transmission could not be accomplished because the Agency’s website was off-line or
unavailable for some other reason. The Board’s Rules and Regulations require that an answer be
signed by counsel or non-attorney representative for represented parties -or by the party if not
represented. See Section 102.21. If the answer being filed electronically is a pdf document
containing the required signature, no paper copies of the answer need to be transmitted to the
Regional O;fﬁce. However, if the electronic version of an-answer to a complaint is not a pdf file
~cont';injng the required signature, then the E-filing Arulés require that such answer containing ‘the
required signature continue to be submitted to the Regional Office by traditional means ‘within

three (3) business days -after the date of electronic filing. Service of the answer on each of the




other parties must still be accomplished by means allowed under the Board’s Rules and
Regulations. The answer may not be filed by facsimile transmission. If no answer is filed, or if -
-an answer is filed untimely, the Board may find, pursuant to a Motion for 'D_efaul-t_ Judgment, that

“the allegations in the Complaint are true.

NOTICE OF HEARING

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE THAT on June 11,2019, at 9:00 a.m., in the Oakland Regional
‘Office of the» Board, 1301 Clay Street, Suite 300N, Oakland, California 94612-5224, and on
consecufive days thereafter until concluded, a hearing will be conducted before an administrative
law judge of the National Labor Relations Board. At the hearing, Respondent and any other party
to this proceeding have the right to appear and present testimony regarding‘ the allegations in this
complaint. The procedures to be followed at the hearing are described in the attached Form NLRB-

4668. The procedure to request a postponement of the hearing is described in the attached Form

NLRB-4338.

DATED AT Oakland, California this 25th day of March 2019.

Valerie Hardy-Mahoney *
Regional Director
National Labor Relations Board
Region 32 _

~ 1301 Clay Street, Suite 300N
‘Oakland, CA 94612-5224

1

Attachments




FORM NLRB 4338
(6-90)

NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD
NOTICE

Case 32-CB-219981

The issuance of the notice of formal hearing in this case does not mean that the matter cannot be disposed
of by agreement of the parties. On the contrary, it is the policy of this office to encourage voluntary adjustments.
The examiner or attorney assigned to the case will be pleased to receive and to act promptly upon your suggestions
or comments to this end. '

An agreement between the parties, approved by the Regional Director, would serve to cancel the hearing,
However, unless otherwise specifically ordered, the hearing will be held at the date, ‘hour, and place indicated. .
Postponements will not be granted unless good and sufficient grounds are shown and the followmg requlrements
are met:

(1) The request must be in writing. An-original and two copies must be filed with the Regional Director
when appropriate under 29 CFR 102.16(a) or with the Division of Judges when appropriate under 29
CFR 102.16(b).

(2) Grounds must be set forth in detail;
(3) Alternative dates for any rescheduled hearing must be given;

(4) The positions of all other parties must be ascertained in advance by the requesting party and set forth in
the request; and

(5) Copies must be simultaneously served on all other parties (listed below), and that fact must be noted on
the request.

Except under the most-extreme conditions, no request for postponement will be granted during the three days
immediately preceding the date of hearing.

Jami Moore

United Food and Commercial Caren Sencer, Esq.

Workers, Local 5 Weinberg Roger & Rosenfeld .
28870 Mission Blvd. 1001 Marina Village Pkwy. Ste. 200
Hayward, CA 94544 Alameda, CA 94501

Christopher Ratana-Kelley David A. Rosenfeld, Union Counsel
1601 Colchester St. Weinberg Roger & Rosenfeld
Danville, CA 94506-2091 1001 Marina Village Pky. Ste. 200

‘ Alameda, CA 94501
Nicole Goins

Safeway Store Aaron B. Solem, Esq.
3496 Camino TassaJ ara National Right to Work Legal
Danville, CA 94506 ‘Defense Foundation, Inc.

8001 Braddock Road, Suite 600
Springfield, VA 22160




Form NLRB-4668
(6-2014)

Procedures in NLRB Unfair Labor Practice Hearings

The attached complaint has scheduled-a hearing that will be conducted by an administrative law judge (ALJ) of the
National Labor Relations Board who will be an independent, impartial finder of facts and applicable law. You may
be represented at this hearing by an attorney or other representative. If you are not currently represented by an
attorney, and wish to have one represent you at the hearing, you should make such arrangements s soon as possible..
A more complete description of the hearing process and the ALI’s role may be found at' Sections 102.34; 102.35;

and 102.45 of the Board’s Rules and Regulations. The Board’s Rules and regu.la‘uons are available at the following
link: www.nlrb.gov/sites/default/files/attachments/basic-page/node-1717/rules_ and_regs_part_102:pdf.

The NLRB allows you to file certain documents electronically and you are encouraged to do so because it ensures
that your government resources are used efficiently. To e-file go to the NLRB’s website at www.nlrb.gov, click on
“e-file documents,” enter the 10-digit case number on the complaint (the first number if there is. more than one€), and.
follow the prompts. You will receive a confirmation number and an €-mail notification that the documents were
successfully filed.

Although this matter is set for trial, this does not mean that this matter cannot be’ resolved through a
settlement agreement. The NLRB recognizes that adjustments or settlements consistent with the policies -of the
National Labor Relations Act reduce government expenditures and promote amity in labor relations and encourages
the parties to engage in settlement efforts. '

L BEFORE THE HEARING

'The rules pertaining to the Board’s pre-hearing procedures, including rules concerning filing an answer, requesting a
postponement, filing other motions, and obtaining subpoenas to compel the attendance of witnesses and production
of .documents from other parties, may be found at Sections 102.20 through 102.32 of the Board’s Rules and
Regulations. In addition, you should be aware of the following:
A
+ Special Needs: If you or any of the witnesses you wish to have testify at the hearing have special needs
and. require auxiliary aids to participate in the hearing, you should notify the Regional Director as soon as
possible and request the necessary assistance. Assistance will be provided to persons who have handicaps
falling within the provisions of Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, and 29 C.FR.
100.603.

e Pre-hearing Conference:. One or more weeks before the hearing, the ALJ may conduct a telephonic
prehearing conference with the parties. During the conference, the ALJ will explore whether the case may be
settled, discuss the issues to be litigated and any logistical issues related to the hearing, and attempt to resolve or
narrow outstanding issues, such as disputes relating to subpoenaed witnesses and documents. This conference
is usually not recorded, but during the hearing the ALJ or the parties sometimes refer to ‘discussions at the pre-
hearing conference. You do not have to wait until the prebearing conference to meet with the other parties to
 discuss settling this case or any other issues.

.. DURING THE HEARING

‘The rules pertaining to the Board’s hearing procedures are found at Sections 102.34 through 102.43 -of the Board’s.
Rules and Regulations. Please note in particular the following:

¢ Witnesses and Evidence: At the hearing, you will have the right to call, examine, and cross-examine
witnesses-and to introduce into the record documents and other evidence.

o  Exhibits: Each exhibit offered in evidence must be provided in duplicate to the court reporter-and a
copy of each of each exhibit should be supplied to the ALJ and each party when the exhibit is offered in

-:(OVER)"



Form NLRB-4668
(6-2014)

evidence. If a copy of any exhibit is not available when the original is received, it will be the resp0n51b1l1ty of
the party offermo such exhibit to submit the copy to the ALJ before the close of hearing, If a copy is not
submitted, and the filing has not been waived by the ALJ, any ruling receiving the exhibit may be rescinded and
the exhibit rejected.

- Transcripts: An official court reporter will make the only official transcript of the proceedings, and all
citations in briefs and arguments must refer to the official record. The Board will not certify any transcript other
than the official tramscript for use in amy court litigation. Proposed corrections of the transcript -should be
. submitted, either by way of stipulation or motion, to the ALJ for approval. Everything said at the hearing while
' the hearing is in session will be recorded by the official reporter unless the ALJ specifically directs off-the-
record discussion. If any party wishes to make off-the-record statements, a request to go off the record should
be directed to the ALJ.-

¢ Oral Argument: You are entitled, on request, to a reasonable period of time at the close of the hearing for
oral argument, which shall be included in'the transcript of the hearing. Alternativély, the ALJ may ask for oral
argument if, at the close of the hearing, if it is believed that such argument would be beneficial to the '
understanding of the contentions of the parties and the factual issues involved.

o Date for Filing Post-Hearmg Brief: Before the hearing closes, you may request to file .a written brief or
proposed findings and conclusions, or both, with-the ALJ. The ALJ has the discretion to grant this request and
to will set a deadline for filing, up to 35 days.

II.. AFTER THE HEARING

The Rules’ pertaining to filing post-hearing briefs and the procedures after the ALJ issues a decision are found at.
Sections 102.42 through 102.48 of the Board’s Rules and Regulations. Please note in particular the following:

o  Extension of Time for Kiling Brief with the ALJ: If you need an extension of time to file a post-hearing
'bnef you must follow Section 102.42 of the Board’s Rules and Regulations, which requires you to file a
request with the appropriate chief or associate chief administrative law judge, depending on where the trial
occurred. You must immediately serve a copy of any request for an extension of time on all other parties and:
furnish proof of that service with your request. You are encouraged to seek the agreement of the other parties
and state their positions in your request.

o  ALJs Decision: In due course, the ALT will prepare and file with the Board a decision in:this matter.
Upon receipt of this decision, the Board will enter an ordef transferring the case to the Board and specifying
when exceptions are due to the ALJ’s decision. The Board will serve copies of that order and the ALI’s
-decision on all parties.

¢ Exzceptjons to the ALJ’s Decision: The procedure to be followed with respect to appealing all or any part
of the ALJ’s decision (by filing exceptions with the Board), submitting briefs, requests for oral argument before
the Board, and related matters is set forth in the Board's Rules and Regulatlons particularly in Section 102.46
and following sections. A summary of the more pertinent of these provisions will be provided to the parties
with the order transferring the matter to the Board.
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United Food and Commercial Workers Local 5, which is improperly named in the
Complaint and does not exist as named in the Complaint, hereby answers the Complaint and
Notice of Hearing as follows:

(1) As to paragraph 1, those allegations are denied on the ground that Christopher
Ratana-Kelley did not file the charge on its own but rather was compelled to do it by outside
forces.

(2)  Asto paragraph 2(a), Respondent denies this allegation on the ground that there
was no employer known as Safeway or “Store 211.” There is an entity known as Safeway, Inc.,
but Respondent does not have knowledge as to whether Safeway, Inc. is a California corporation
or it is organized under the laws of some other state. Respondent specifically denies that there is
any entity “Employer Store 211" and furthermore denies that “Employer Store 211, has been
operating a chain of retail grocery stores.” Safeway, Inc. has been operating a chain of stores
which sells more than just groceries for example it sells gas. People do not eat gas.

3 As to paragraph 2(b), because paragraph 2(a) is unclear as to whether the
employer is Safeway, Safeway, Inc. or “Employer Store 211,” Respondent denies the allegations
of 2(b). Respondent does admit that Safeway, Inc. in conducting all its operations derives gross
revenue in excess of $500,000. Respondent denies that Safeway, Inc. has “derived gross
revenues in excess of $500,000” since the plural is not the correct word.

4 As to paragraph 2(c), because the above allegation isn’t clear as to who the
employer is, Respondent denies the allegations of paragraph 2(c). Respondent does admit that
Safeway, Inc. has “purchased and received products, goods, and services valued in excess of
$5,000 which originated from points located outside of the State of California” including China.

%) As to paragraph 3, this allegation is denied on the ground that the current Labor
Board is likely to arbitrarily change the definition of employer, engage on commerce, and
“within the meaning of Section 2(2)(6) and (7) of the Act.” Furthermore, because the allegations
of who the employer is is unclear, Respondent cannot respond further. Respondent does admit

that Safeway, Inc. does employ employees within the meaning of those Sections of the Act.



(6) As to paragraph 4, that allegation is denied. The caption suggests that the
Respondent is “United Food Commercial Workers, Local 5 (Safeway Store).” There is no such
labor organization with that name. The first paragraph alleges that there is a labor organization
known as “United Food and Commercial Workers, UFCW Local 5.” The proper name is United
Food and Commercial Workers Local No. 5, chartered by the United Food and Commercial
Workers International Union, AFL-CIO.CLC. As to paragraph 4, Respondent admits that if
properly named, it is currently a labor organization within the meaning of the Act. Respondent,
however, denies the ultimate conclusion because the current Board is likely to change the
definition of labor organization within the meaning of the Act because of the radical changes it
has made to the Act.

@) With respect to the allegations of paragraph 5, these are denied.

With respect to the allegations of Paragraphs 6, 7, 8, 9 and 10, these allegations are denied.

Respondent does not concede that it has the burden of proof on any of these Affirmative
Defenses:

FIRST AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

The Complaint is barred by Section 10(b).
SECOND AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

The Complaint is barred because the Charging Party was unlawfully, illegally and
improperly coerced into filing the charge. The Charging Party did not make a free choice to file
the charge.

THIRD AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

The Charge is barred by the doctrine of waiver, laches and estoppel.

FOURTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

The Complaint and the remedy sought are barred by the First Amendment of the United

States Constitution.



FIFTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

The Complaint and the remedy sought are barred by the Thirteenth Amendment of the
United States Constitution.

SIXTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

The Complaint and the remedy sought are barred by the Fourteenth Amendment and the
Fifth Amendment of the United States Constitution.

SEVENTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

The Complaint and the remedy sought are barred by the Religious Freedom Restoration
Act.
EIGHTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

The Complaint and the remedy sought are forced and compelled speech which is barred
by the First Amendment of the United States Constitution.
NINTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

The Complaint should be barred since the current General Counsel of the National Labor
Relations Board should not participate in this matter and should be recusing himself.

TENTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

The Complaint should be barred since the Regional Director of Region 32 should have
recused herself.

ELEVENTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

The Complaint should be barred because the national right to work legal defense
foundation inc., of which Aaron Solem is an attorney, is an employer dominated and assisted
labor organization which is sponsored and controlled by employers for the purpose of busting
Unions. Itis an alter ego, joint employer and agent with the national right to work committee. It
is also a racketeering enterprise because its operations violate 29 U.S.C. § 186 which is a

predicate offense for a RICO action.



TWELFTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

The national right to work legal defense foundation inc. does not represent Christopher
Ratana- Kelley.
THIRTEENTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

The current National Labor Relations Board is improperly and illegally constituted.

FOURTEENTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

Any Administrative Law Judge assigned to this matter was improperly appointed.

FIFTEENTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

Members Ring, Emmanuel and Kaplan should recuse themselves.

SIXTEENTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

The Complaint is barred by the California Constitution.

SEVENTEENTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

The Complaint and the procedure of the National Labor Relations Board violate the
Administrative Procedures Act and due process.

EIGHTEENTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

The Complaint and the remedy sought violate international labor law rights and treaties
with other countries and sovereign nations.

NINETEENTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

The Complaint and the remedy violate Freedom of Association and Protection of the
Right to Organize Convention, 1948 (No. 87) of the ILO and the Right to Organize and
Collective Bargaining Convention, 1949 (No. 98) and various other International Conventions,
International Instruments. A copy of the relevant provisions is attached as Exhibit A.

TWENTIETH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

Charging Party has failed to exhaust all available remedies such as the grievance

procedure and the internal union procedure.



TWENTY-FIRST AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

The NLRB uses FedEx a notorious violator of the Act and other laws designed to protect
workers. The Board and anyone representing charging party should be barred from using FedEx.

TWENTY-SECOND AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

Safeway Inc and other employers support the national right to work legal defense
foundation and it is an improperly employer supported and dominated organization. As such it
should be barred from these proceedings.

WHEREFORE, the Complaint should be dismissed, the Respondent should be awarded
its attorney’s fees and appropriate sanctions should issue against Aaron Solem and the national
right to work legal defense foundation inc. and others involved in this matter including the
National Labor Relations Board. The matter should be referred to a special counsel engaged to

investigate the abusive process involved in this matter.

Dated: April 29, 2019 Respectfully Submitted,

WEINBERG, ROGER & ROSENFELD
A Professional Corporation

/s/ David A. Rosenfeld

By: DAVID A. ROSENFELD

Attorneys for the Union, UNITED FOOD AND
COMMERCIAL WORKERS LOCAL 5

145240\1023333
















































































































































































































































































































































PROOF OF SERVICE

I am a citizen of the United States and resident of the State of California. 1 am employed
in the County of Alameda, State of California, in the office of a member of the bar of this Court,
at whose direction this service was made. | am over the age of eighteen years and not a party to
the within action.

On April 29, 2019, | served the following documents in the manner described below:

FIRST AMENDED ANSWER TO COMPLAINT

M (BY ELECTRONIC SERVICE: By electronically mailing a true and correct copy
through Weinberg, Roger & Rosenfeld’s electronic mail system from
kkempler@unioncounsel.net to the email addresses set forth below.

On the following part(ies) in this action:

Aaron B. Solem Stephen M. Sloper

8001 Braddock Road, Suite 600 National Labor Relations Board, Region 32
Springfield, VA 22160 Field Examiner

abs@nrtw.org 1301 Clay Street, Suite 300N

Oakland, CA 94612-5224
stephen.sloper@nlrb.gov

Christy J. Kwon

Regional Attorney

National Labor Relations Board, Region 32
1301 Clay Street, Suite 300N
Christy.kwon@nlrb.gov

M (BY U.S. MAIL) I am personally and readily familiar with the business practice of
Weinberg, Roger & Rosenfeld for collection and processing of correspondence for
mailing with the United States Postal Service, and I caused such envelope(s) with
postage thereon fully prepaid to be placed in the United States Postal Service at
Alameda, California.

On the following part(ies) in this action:
Christopher Ratana-Kelley

1601 Colchester Street
Danville, CA 94506

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the United States of America that the

foregoing is true and correct. Executed on April 29, 2019, at Alameda, California.

/s/ Karen Kempler
Karen Kempler



mailto:kkempler@unioncounsel.net
mailto:abs@nrtw.org
mailto:stephen.sloper@nlrb.gov
mailto:Christy.kwon@nlrb.gov

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
BEFORE THE NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD
REGION 32

UNITED FOOD AND COMMERCIAL WORKERS
LOCAL NO. 5 CHARTERED BY THE UNITED Case 32-CB-219981
FOOD AND COMMERCIAL WORKERS

INTERNATIONAL UNION. AFL-CIO.CLC
(SAFEWAY STORES) Date: May 21, 2019

and

Christopher Ratana-Kelley, an Individual

AFFIDAVIT OF SERVICE OF COUNSEL FOR THE GENERAL COUNSEL'’S
OPPOSITION TO RESPONDENT’S MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGEMENT

I, the undersigned employee of the National Labor Relations Board, being duly sworn, depose and say that on the
date indicated above | served the above-entitled document(s) upon the persons at the addresses and in the manner
indicated below. Persons listed below under "E-Service" have voluntarily consented to receive service electronically,
and such service has been effected on the same date indicated above.

David A. Rosenfeld, Union Counsel Caren Sencer, Esq.

Weinberg Roger & Rosenfeld Weinberg Roger & Rosenfeld

1001 Marina Village Pkwy. Ste. 200 1001 Marina Village Pkwy. Ste. 200
Alameda, CA 94501 Alameda, CA 94501-6430

VIA Email: drosenfeld@unioncounsel.net VIA Email: csencer@unioncounsel.net
Aaron B. Solem, Esg. Office of the Executive Secretary
National Right to Work Legal National Labor Relations Board

Defense Foundation, Inc. 1015 Half Street SE

8001 Braddock Road, Suite 600 Washington, DC 20570-0001
Springfield, VA 22160 VIA E-FILE

VIA Email: abs@nrtw.org

May 21, 2019 Ida Lam, Designated Agent of NLRB

Name

/s/ 1da Lam

Signature
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